
 

 
 

SERVICE DELIVERY OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY PANEL AGENDA 

 
Date: 

 

Wednesday, 8 June 2022 

Time: 
 

7.00 pm 

Venue: 
 

The Council Chamber, Moorlands House, Stockwell Street, Leek 

27 May 2022 
PART 1 

1. Apologies.  

2. Notification of Substitute Members, if any.  

3. To approve the Minutes of the Previous Meetings. (Pages 3 - 14) 

4. Urgent Items of Business, if any. (24 hours notice to be provided to the Chairman).  

5. Declaration of Interests:-  

  Disclosable Pecuniary Interests 

 Other Interests 

 

6. Questions to Portfolio Holders, if any.  

 (At least two clear days notice required, in writing, to the Proper Officer in 
accordance with Procedure Rule 15). 

 

7. Work Programme. (Pages 15 - 16) 

 Any additional items to be added to the Work Programme: 
 Chair’s Items 

 Members’ Items 

 

8. Play and Outdoor Sports Facilities Investment Plan. (Pages 17 - 32) 

9. Exclusion of the Press and Public.  

 The Chair to move:- 
 

 “That pursuant to Section 100A (2) and (4) of the Local Government Act, 1972, the 

public be excluded from the meeting in view of the nature of the business to be 
transacted or nature of the proceedings whereby it is likely that exempt information 

as defined in Section 100A (3) of the Act would be disclosed to the public in breach 
of the obligation of confidence or exempt information as defined in Section 100I (1) 
of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act would be disclosed to the public by virtue of the 

You can view the agenda 
online by using a smart 
phone camera and 

scanning the code below: 

 

Public Document Pack



paragraphs indicated.” 
 

10. To approve the exempt minutes from the previous meeting. (Pages 33 - 36) 

 (Paragraph 3 - Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any 
particular person (including the authority holding that information) ) 

 
 
MARK TRILLO 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR & MONITORING OFFICER 
 

Membership of Service Delivery Overview & Scrutiny Panel 
Councillor I Herdman (Chair) Councillor D Price (Vice-Chair) 

Councillor G Bentley Councillor M Bowen 
Councillor C Brady Councillor S Ellis 
Councillor B Emery Councillor E Fallows 

Councillor A Hart Councillor N Hawkins 
Councillor T Holmes Councillor K Hoptroff 

Councillor B A Hughes Councillor L Page 
Councillor H Plimley Councillor P Routledge 
Councillor Z Routledge Councillor J Salt 

Councillor P Wood  
 



1 
 

 

STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

SERVICE DELIVERY OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY 
PANEL MEETING 

 

Minutes 
 

WEDNESDAY, 16 MARCH 2022 
 

PRESENT: Councillor   I Herdman (Vice-Chair)  
 

 Councillors: J Aberley, G Bentley, C Brady, J Davies, B Emery, 
K Flunder, N Hawkins, K Hoptroff, B A Hughes, L Page, H Plimley 

and P Roberts. 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Councillors: M Bowen, B Cawley, M Gledhill, A Hart, T Holmes, 

J T Jones, L A Malyon, K Martin, I Plant, J Porter, S E Ralphs MBE, 
P Routledge, S Scalise and L Swindlehurst. 

 
APOLOGIES: Councillors R Ward, D Price, J Redfern, J Salt, H Sheldon MBE and 

P Wood. 

 
25 NOTIFICATION OF SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS, IF ANY. 

 

The following substitutions were made: - 
 

Councillor Holmes for Councillor Ward 
Councillor Gledhill for Councillor Price 

Councillor Routledge for Councillor Sheldon 
Councillor Yates for Councillor Salt 
Councillor Malyon for Councillor Wood 

 
26 TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING. 

 
DECIDED:  That the minutes of the previous meeting held on 26 January 2022, be 

approved as a correct record and signed by the Chair. 

 
27 URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS, IF ANY. (24 HOURS NOTICE TO BE 

PROVIDED TO THE CHAIRMAN). 
 

Members discussed the humanitarian crisis in Ukraine, the role of the District 

Council in relation to housing refugees and the feasibility of the Council providing 
financial assistance.  

 
The Chair asked for any suggestions or comments to be emailed to the Democratic 
Services Team. An outline document had been produced by the Labour Group which 

was given to a member of staff during the meeting. 
 

The point was stressed for town and parish councils to be included in any 
communication in regards to this matter.  
 

 
 Page 3

Agenda Item 3



Service Delivery Overview & Scrutiny Panel - 16 March 2022 
 

2 
 

28 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS:- 
 

Agenda No. Member Declaring 

Interest 

Nature of Interest 

Agenda Item 6 – 
Questions to Portfolio 

Holders 

Cllr Bentley   Other – Lengthsman for 
Cheadle. 

Agenda Item 8 – 

Parkwood Leisure 
Performance Update  

Cllr Routledge Other – Daughter 

assists at the Paddles 
Swimming Club.  

 

29 QUESTIONS TO PORTFOLIO HOLDERS, IF ANY. 
 
Question received from Councillor Hoptroff: - 

Q1.   “What is the time scale for work on the Trestle Market alterations and when is 
this due to start?” 

 
Response from Councillor Ralphs, The Leader: 

This project was part of the regeneration of Leek town centre. The Market Hall would 

be modernised to increase the number of stalls and respond to requests received 
from young people and shop keepers to increase footfall following the pandemic. 

Cabinet had complied with requests made when the last market report was called in 
by members and a further report would be considered by Cabinet at the end of 
March 2022.  

 
By way of supplementary questions, Councillor Hoptroff requested that Scooter Fest 

be allowed use of the Market Hall for its event on 22 May 2022. In response, 
Councillor Ralphs confirmed that the event organisers had been advised last year 
that they could no longer use the Market Hall for the event. However, the event could 

still be held and the Council had offered the use of the car parks, gazebos and the 
Churnet Room. 

 
Councillor Hoptroff felt that the Churnet Room was not a feasible option for the event 
as many visitors would have to cross Stockwell Street and requested for a 

comprehensive consultation to be undertaken. The Leader advised that there was a 
pedestrian crossing to ensure the road could be crossed safely and that consultation 

had already been carried out.  
 
Question received from Councillor Malyon: - 

Q2. “Could you tell me why or if it is true that Scooter Fest cannot use the Trestle 
Market when the event happens on 22/5/22?” 

 
With reference to Scooter Fest being held in the Market Hall for the event in May, if 
the works hadn’t commenced, Councillor Ralphs commented that a finely balanced 

programme of works would start as soon as possible. Once completed, the newly 
refurbished Market Hall would benefit traders, customers and visitors as it would be 

provide a more interesting shopping experience. The use of the current Trestle 
Market was not integral to the success of the Scooter Fest event.  
 

 
 

 Page 4



Service Delivery Overview & Scrutiny Panel - 16 March 2022 
 

3 
 

Question received from Councillor Page:-  

Q3. “What process does SMDC follow when it receives a request from a community 

organisation to use Council facilities and buildings? Please could the response be 
provided in writing so that the Panel have this minuted?” 
 
Response from Councillor Ralphs, The Leader:  

The relevant department to contact was the Assets Team which was managed by 

Katy Webster.  
 
Clarity was sought around the decision making process for the hire of assets owned 

by the Council. Members were advised that requests would be received by the 
Assets Team which would then be sent to Councillor Hart – Portfolio Holder for 

Property & Tourism. His recommendation would then be discussed with Cabinet and 
implemented as soon as possible.  
 
Question received from Councillor Bentley:-  

Q4. “When are these areas in Leek and Cheadle going to be cleaned up, as visitors 

and residents of the Moorlands don't want to see this when they shop in our towns.” 
(a number of photographs had been circulated to members of the Panel) 
 
Response from Councillor Hart – Portfolio Holder for Property & Tourism:- 

Most of the photos appear to relate to weed growth in the block paved areas around 

the Market Street car park, Leek . Generally, the service arrangements with AES are 
required to apply a herbicide treatment to all the pay and display car parks twice a 
year across the Staffordshire Moorlands. This tends to be undertaken in the drier 

months of May and then again in August to provide best coverage throughout the 
main growing season. A number of the photos show evidence of the last treatment 

(as the vegetation is browned and lying flat). Warmer winters do provide a habitat for 
continued weed growth but at a much less vigorous rate than experienced in the 
summer. More than two applications of herbicide are not usually recommended for 

environmental reasons. The area at the side of the market hall and entrance to the 
butter market off Derby street has been added to our weed killing schedule for 2022 

by the markets team. 
 
Some of the street furniture within the car parks, such as bollards and planters cause 

issues of access for the mechanical sweepers. The AES team have already started 
to target these areas in advance of a “Spring Clean” and will seek to remove the 

accumulations identified in the photos. Throughout the winter the frequency of 
cleansing is reduced as AES teams are diverted onto gritting duties when the 
conditions dictate this action must be prioritised.  

 
AES will be targeting the identified car parks with jet washers over the coming weeks 

to clean up the signage and the areas targeted as part of the spring clean before 
they treat the areas with herbicide.  
 

We can advise that Leek Town Council employ a lengths man but we are not aware 
of the town council’s work programme. In addition Cheadle Town Council do submit 

an invoice for £400 annually as part of the lengthsman scheme to the council (via 
AES) and they state on their invoice that this is for works around the Town Centre. 
The types of issues identified in the photos could be tackled via the lengthsman 

function. 
 

Councillor Hart suggested that this matter could have been dealt with as a service 
request to the department or to him directly.   Page 5



Service Delivery Overview & Scrutiny Panel - 16 March 2022 
 

4 
 

 
 

30 WORK PROGRAMME 
 
DECIDED: That the Panel’s Work Programme be agreed, subject to, an item being 

added on the delivery of business units within the area. 
 

31 PARKWOOD ANNUAL PERFORMANCE UPDATE - FRANCOIS SMIT, 
REGIONAL DIRECTOR, PARKWOOD LEISURE (PRESENTATION) (7.15PM) 
 

The Panel received a presentation on the following topics:- 
 

 Recovery following the pandemic 

 Supply chain and recruitment challenges 

 Digital improvements for customers 

 Financial performance  

 Social value generated annually across the contact during 2019/20 

 Contract highlights 

 Memberships 

 Growth of the Swim School  

 Social Media  

 Customer feedback 

 Maintenance/capital investment 

 Carbon reduction and utility management 

 Active Communities 

 
Members asked questions and commented as below: -  

 
Solar Panels at Biddulph Valley Leisure Centre - Some members felt that it was a 
missed opportunity not to install solar panels during the replacement of the roof. 

Consideration had been given to the installation of solar panels and the repairs to 
the roof were part of the Capital Investment Programme which had been instructed 

by the Council. Going forward the Leisure Transformation Programme would include 
a review of the sites and ensure the sites were as green as possible.  
 

Impact of increased energy prices to customers - This would increase pricing for 
some leisure services but there were internal targets to reduce energy usage and 

use greener technology. 
 
Percentage of the swim timetable which was dedicated to public swims and 

affordability of lessons – Swimming lessons ran from 4pm - 6.30pm during the week, 
therefore public swimming was available before and after these times. At the 

weekend, there were 3 hours per day dedicated to public swimming at each leisure 
centre. The actual percentages could be provided after the meeting via email.  
 

Possible reduction in lane swimming – Parkwood constantly reviewed its 
programmes and lane swimming remained popular. Where possible , the pools could 

accommodate lane and general swimming. 
 
2020/21 figures – These figures were not included in the update as the sites were 

closed for the majority of this time but the information was available should this be 
required. 

 Page 6



Service Delivery Overview & Scrutiny Panel - 16 March 2022 
 

5 
 

Discussion also took place around customers being deterred from accessing the 
facilities due to the increased cost of living, the importance of all children being able 

to swim, open days and the recruitment of an Active Communities Manager. 
 
The Chair thanked the officers for attending the meeting. 

 
DECIDED: That the performance update be noted. 

 
32 CALL-IN OF THE CABINET DECISION - CAR PARKING STRATEGY 

(7.45PM) 

 

Mrs Helen Bridgett provided a verbal statement to the Panel in relation to the 

submission of the petition to oppose the charge period (8:00 am to 6:00 pm) and the 
increased parking tariffs in Leek. 
 

At its last meeting, Cabinet received the newly drafted Staffordshire Moorlands Car 
Parking Strategy, after it had been debated in detail by the Service Delivery 

Overview and Scrutiny Panel on 26 January 2022. This followed consideration by 
the cross-party Car Park Working Group at a number of meetings during 2021. The 
Strategy and associated investment plans were generally supported by the Panel. 

Members did however recommend that Cabinet should review the Strategy 12 
months after implementation to evaluate its impact and that consideration be given 

to defer the changes relating to the revised charging period in Cheadle. 
 
Cabinet approved the adoption of the Car Parking Strategy, subject to,  

 
- the Strategy being reviewed 12 months after implementation to evaluate 

its impact. 
- That the proposed charge period (8:00 am to 6:00 pm) and the associated 

free half an hour / one hour concessions be deferred in Cheadle. The 

present charge period to be retained (9:30 am to 3:30 pm) subject to a 
further review later in the year when the outcomes from the High Streets 

Task Force / Masterplan Development are known. 
 
The key findings, recommendations and action plan within the Strategy were noted 

and the following actions approved: 
 

a. That the tariffs set out in section 8.13 of the report for the new financial year 
be implemented. 

 

b. That a tourist parking pass be created and permits be reviewed to ensure 
more flexibility for customers.  

 
c. That Pay by Phone across SMDC car parks to facilitate cashless and 

contactless payments be implemented as soon as possible. 

 
d. That the current ticket machines be replaced on a phased base, reducing 

where possible, to include contactless and card payment options. 
 
e. That a bespoke SMDC EV strategy be progressed and developed working 

collaboratively with Staffordshire County Council and their consultants.  
 

f. That short stay and long stay areas on Cheadle Tape Street car park and 
tariff changes be created, updating the SMDC parking order accordingly. Page 7



Service Delivery Overview & Scrutiny Panel - 16 March 2022 
 

6 
 

 
g. That the creation of a new officer position within the Assets Service to 

strategically manage car parking across the Alliance and implement the action 
plan and strategy over the course of the next 5 years be noted.  

 

h. That appropriate funds be allocated to improve signage and wayfinding on the 
car parks.  

 
During the meeting of Council on 23 February 2022, a petition to oppose the charge 
period (8:00 am to 6:00 pm) and the increased parking tariffs in Leek was received. 

 
The Leader advised that the Strategy had been altered and free parking would be 

available in Leek before 9:30am and after 3:30pm. However, the new short free 
parking periods on certain car parks within the Strategy in Leek would be abolished 
and the new tariffs implemented. 

 
Call-in requests had been received from Councillors: - 

M. Gledhill, K. Hoptroff, L. Page, D. Price, C. Atkins, L. Swindlehurst, B. Cawley, P. 
Taylor and S. Coleman. 
 

The call-in request confirmed the following principles of decision making which they 
believed had not been adhered to and the reasons they had not been followed: 

 
Taking due regard of all relevant considerations and disregarding irrelevant 

considerations- The decision to implement the strategy at this time does not 
sufficiently take into account the local economic circumstances for businesses and 
residents at the beginning of the COVID recovery. 

 
Taken on the basis of due consultation and professional advice from Officers - The 

outcomes of the consultation done in Feb 21 by the consultants regarding Leek 
seem to contrast sharply with public opinion being expressed now. Also, the 

consultants state that “ the biggest response came from Cheadle”. Covid restrictions 
meant that there were no public face to face consultations and that attendance at 
workshops could well have been affected. These points cast doubts on the 

assumptions made at that time. This should be revisited. 
 

Respect for human rights and equalities - The lack of the ‘free half hour’ in the leek 

car parks closest to the centre discriminates against those with walking difficulties, 

who do not have a disability blue badge. 
 
A presumption in favour of openness - At the Jan 22 meeting of Services Scrutiny, 

The Chair did offer a subsequent meeting to have further discussion. This has not 
happened but we feel that this would be beneficial. A call in would facilitate this. 

 
Members debated the points raised both in the Cabinet and Call-in reports, 

particularly around the use of consultants for this strategy. The Panel also 
recommended that the Car Parking Working Group be reconvened.  
 

The matter was then put to a named vote as follows:- 
 
In favour of the Call-in: 

Councillors: Brady, Davies, Hawkins, Hoptroff, Page, Gledhill and Yates (7) 
 Page 8



Service Delivery Overview & Scrutiny Panel - 16 March 2022 
 

7 
 

Against the Call-in: 

Councillors: Aberley, Bentley, Emery, Flunder, Herdman, Hughes, Plimley, Roberts, 

Routledge, Holmes and Malyon (11) 
 
DECIDED: For the decision not to be referred back to Cabinet for reconsideration.  

 
In accordance with the procedure for consideration of Call-ins at Overview & 

Scrutiny Panel meetings where the Call-in was not successful, the Cabinet were 
asked to note or take account of concerns as it saw fit without holding up the 
implementation of the decision. 

 
 

33 REVISED PRIVATE SECTOR HOUSING RENEWAL  ASSISTANCE POLICY 
2021-26 - MIKE TOWERS, SENIOR HOUSING OFFICER. (8.15PM) 
 

Both this report and the item on the Transfer of the Management of the Countryside 
Sites would be considered at another meeting as the Panel decided to adjourn the 

meeting at this point. 
 
 

The meeting was adjourned at 9.25 pm 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
_________________________________Chairman ____________________Date 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

 

STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

SERVICE DELIVERY OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY 
PANEL MEETING 

 

Minutes 
 

WEDNESDAY, 23 MARCH 2022 
 

PRESENT: Councillor   I Herdman (Vice-Chair) 
 

 Councillors C Brady, J Davies, B Emery, N Hawkins, K Hoptroff, 
L Page, D Price and P Roberts 

 
ALSO PRESENT: Councillors C J S Atkins, M Bowen, A Hart, T Holmes, S Scalise, 

L Swindlehurst, N Yates and J Porter 

 
APOLOGIES: Councillors R Ward, J Aberley, G Bentley, K Flunder, B A Hughes, 

H Plimley, J Salt, H Sheldon MBE and P Wood 
 

34 NOTIFICATION OF SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS, IF ANY. 

 

Councillor Holmes was present as a substitute for Councillor Flunder. 

 
35 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS:- 

 

Agenda No. Member 

Declaring 
Interest 

Nature of 

Interest 

Agenda item 6 – Proposal to transfer the 
management of the countryside sites 

Cllr P Roberts Other – Is an 

acquaintance of a 
farmer on Wetley 

Moor Common. 

 
36 REVISED PRIVATE SECTOR HOUSING RENEWAL  ASSISTANCE POLICY 

2021-26 - MIKE TOWERS, SENIOR HOUSING OFFICER. 

 

The Panel considered a revised Private Sector Housing Renewal Assistance Policy 

for Staffordshire Moorlands District Council following public consultation. 
 
Staffordshire Moorlands District Council was required to publish a policy that outlined 

how the local housing authority would comply with their obligations under the 
Housing Regulatory Reform Orders and the Housing Act 2004 to provide housing 

renewal interventions for the maintenance of the private sector housing stock and 
enforcement of their legal obligations. 
 

The Housing Regulatory Reform Order 1994 required that local authorities publish a 
policy on their interventions in the private housing sector in order to maintain and 

improve as necessary the housing stock in their area. 
 
The Housing Act 2004 required local authorities to publish their enforcement policy 

for the application of their legal powers and duties. 
 

Page 11



Service Delivery Overview & Scrutiny Panel - 23 March 2022 
 

2 
 

Local Authorities were required to review their Private Sector Housing Policies from 
time to time to ensure that they reflect current housing regulation and guidance and 

current trends in housing renewal. The Policy was last reviewed in 2016, and the 
current revised Policy was intended, on implementation, to determine the Council’s 
regulatory and discretionary interventions in respect of the private sector housing 

stock for the next 5 years. 
 

The draft Private Sector Housing Renewal Assistance Policy was circulated to 
Staffordshire Moorlands members in December 2021 as an Information Digest as a 
precursor to the launch of the public consultation. The public consultation was 

subsequently launched on 7th January 2022 and ran to 4th March 2022, and at the 
same time the draft policy was sent directly to a number of external stakeholders, as 

detailed in Section 4 of the Policy. The public consultation was supplemented by a 
press release and promotion on the Council’s Social Media platforms. 
 

On conclusion of the consultation period, the Council had received no formal 
representations form the public or other stakeholders. 

 
In response to a query in relation to empty properties, the Panel was advised that a 
meeting had taken place between councillors and officers. The Council was keen to 

work with parish/town councils on this matter and members could speak individually 
to officers about any specific empty properties which they were aware of.  

 
Clarification was sought around empty business premises and it was confirmed that 
this legislation related only to domestic dwellings. The Council was also in the 

process of contacting all landlords of properties with an energy performance 
certificate rated less than E.  

 
Members were encouraged to contact Mike Towers, should they wish to discuss any 
aspect of the report further.  

 
DECIDED: The Panel RECOMMENDED Cabinet APPROVE the revised 

Staffordshire Moorlands Private Sector Housing Renewal Assistance Policy for 
2021-26. 
 

37 EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC. 
 

“That pursuant to Section 100A (2) and (4) of the Local Government Act, 1972, the 
public be excluded from the meeting in view of the nature of the business to be 
transacted or nature of the proceedings whereby it is likely that exempt information 

as defined in Section 100A (3) of the Act would be disclosed to the public in breach 
of the obligation of confidence or exempt information as defined in Section 100I (1) 

of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act would be disclosed to the public by virtue of the 
paragraphs indicated.” 
 

 
38 PROPOSAL TO TRANSFER THE MANAGEMENT OF THE SMDC 

COUNTRYSIDE SITES - NICOLA KEMP, HEAD OF SERVICE 
COMMISSIONING. 
 

Members considered a report on the proposal to transfer the management of the 
SMDC Countryside Sites. 

 
 Page 12



Service Delivery Overview & Scrutiny Panel - 23 March 2022 
 

3 
 

The meeting closed at 6.57 pm 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
_________________________________Chairman ____________________Date 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
Service Delivery Overview and Scrutiny Panel  

Work Programme 2022/23 

 Date Item Contact 

Officer 

 

8 June 22     

 SMDC Play Strategy G Knapper  

29 June 22    

 Refreshed Sports & Physical Activity Strategy R Wilks TBC  

    

7 Sep 22    

 New Leisure Operating Model Proposals N Kemp TBC 

 Leisure Facilities Improvement Plan N Kemp Require a meeting of the LFWG prior to committee 

report 

 Leek Mills Masterplan S Porru  

 Leek Market Operations S Porru  

 Tourism Strategy S Porru  

2 Nov 22    

 Tourism Strategy S Porru  

 AES Annual Performance Update   

 Refreshed Growth Strategy S Porru  

25 Jan 23    

 Parkwood Annual Performance Update   

1 Mar 23    

    

TBC   Status Update 

 Strategy for Development of Affordable & Specialist Housing S Porru/H 
Core 

Update required 

 Management Plan for green spaces managed and maintained 
by SMDC (Cllr Yates) 

AES/N Kemp/ 
D Smith 

Nature Recovery Strategy to be developed first, 
followed by specific policies, including mowing and 

trees. Timeline to be confirmed.    

 Delivery of Business Units in the area (Cllr Yates) S Porru Update required 

 Developer Contributions Supplementary Planning Document M James Autumn 2022 

 Conservation Area Appraisals M James Winter 2022 

 Climate Change Planning Guidance M James Due by March 2023 

    

P
age 15

A
genda Item

 7



T
his page is intentionally left blank



  

 
STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 

Service Delivery Overview & Scrutiny Panel 
 

8 June 2022 
 

 

TITLE: 
 

Play and Outdoor Sports Facilities 
Investment Plan 

 
PORTFOLIO HOLDER: 

 
Councillor Mark Deaville - Deputy Leader & 
Portfolio Holder for Leisure and Sports 

 
CONTACT OFFICER: 

 
Gareth Knapper - Service Development 

Officer, Robert Wilks - Principal Officer 
(Leisure and Recreation) 

 

WARDS INVOLVED: 
 

 

All 

 

 
Appendix A1 - A4  – Play and Outdoor Sports Facilities Investment and 
Delivery Plan. 

 
 
1. Reason for the Report 
 

1.1 To update the Service Delivery Overview & Scrutiny Panel on the 

development of an investment plan for delivery of refurbishment works or full 
replacement of Council owned play and outdoor sports facilities across the 

district. 
 
2. Recommendation 

2.1 That the Panel recommends that the Cabinet approves the report and 
supports the refurbishment or replacement of Council owned play areas and 

outdoor sports facilities across the district as detailed in the report. 
 
3. Executive Summary. 

 
3.1 Play and outdoor sports facilities are important assets in many of our parks 

and open spaces and it is important these facilities are provided, maintained 
and developed effectively. To ensure this happens, the proposed investment 
and delivery plan detailed in Appendix 1 has been developed and proposes a 

programme of refurbishment and/or replacement of selected facilities over a 4 
year rolling period. 

 
3.2 To develop the plan, quality assessments of existing Council owned play and 

outdoor sports facilities have been undertaken which has highlighted the 

facilities that require improvements, the approximate timeframe for when these 

Page 17

Agenda Item 8



  

improvements need to be delivered by, and a budget estimate for how much 
the improvements are likely to cost. 

 

3.3 The estimated cost to deliver the first 4 years of this plan is £320,000 and this 
amount would need adding to the medium term financial plan (MTFP) as a 

growth item starting in the 2023/24 financial year. The impact of this results in 
the additional revenue borrowing costs as detailed in section 6.4 below. 

 

3.4 It may be possible to offset the amount of funding required to deliver the 
proposed programme of works using section 106 funds secured for these 

types of improvements from housing developers. Where this is possible, the 
funds secured will be factored into each project on a case-by-case basis, 
resulting in a reduced cost to the Council. 

 
3.5 During the planning phase for each project, officers within the Council’s 

Leisure and Recreation team will assess whether it is possible to secure 
external funding towards them. If this is possible, it will further reduce the cost 
to the Council for delivering each project. However, should it not be possible to 

secure external funding, the proposed budget request included in this report 
will still be sufficient to deliver all projects to the required level. 

 
3.6 The District Council does not have the responsibility for refurbishing or 

replacing play areas and some outdoor sports facilities in Cheadle but, 

recognising the importance of these facilities to local residents, officers are 
working with Cheadle Town Council to develop an improvement plan for Tean 
Road Recreation ground and Churchill Road Recreation ground. This plan is 

expected to be completed during 2022 and funding via a number of section 
106 agreements has already been identified to contribute towards delivery of 

any plan, once trigger points are met within these agreements.  
 

4.        How this report links to Corporate Priorities  

 

4.1 Aim 1: “To help create a safer and healthier environment for our communities 

to live and work”. Within this aim one of the objectives is “provision of sports 
facilities and leisure opportunities focused upon improving health”.  

 

4.2  Aim 4: “To protect and improve the environment and respond to the climate 
emergency”. Within this aim, one of the objectives is “provision of quality parks 

and open spaces”.  
 
 

5. Alternative Options 

 

5.1 To recommend that the Cabinet approve the Play and Outdoor Sports 
Facilities Investment and Delivery Plan at a cost of £320, 000 over a four year 
period from 2023-24. (Recommended) 

 
5.2 To not recommend approval of the Play and Outdoor Sports Facilities 

Investment and Delivery Plan. (Not Recommended) 
 
 

Page 18



  

 
 
6. Implications 

 
6.1

  

Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998) 

 
Parks provide a range of opportunities for people of all ages to 
engage in positive activities. Outdoor play and sports facilities can 

provide an outlet for young people and help deter them from 
antisocial behaviour, therefore it is important these facilities are 

provided and kept in a good condition.  
 

6.2 Workforce 

 
None specifically. 

 
6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment 

 

An EIA has been completed in accordance with the Council’s 
policy. 

 
6.4 Financial Considerations 

 

The proposed Play and Outdoor Sports Facilities Investment and 
Delivery Plan includes a request for £320,000 of capital funds to 
improve identified facilities over the course of the next 4 years. This 

is a growth item and results in additional revenue borrowing costs 
of £3,680 (23/24), £13,760 (24/25), £13,760 (25/26) and £13,760 

(26/27).Where it is appropriate to do so, s106 receipts will be used 
to reduce the reliance on the Council funding. The risk remains that 
should there be a delay or shortfall in anticipated s106 funding the 

on-going costs would have to be met by the Council. 
 

AES are responsible for the maintenance of play and outdoor 
sports facilities which the Council owns. The maintenance costs 
associated with these schemes can be contained within existing 

revenue budget provision. 
 

Key objectives proposed in the plan may have a financial 
implication, however, until further scoping works are undertaken 
these implications are unknown. Further reports detailing any 

projects which have a financial implication for the Council would 
need to be brought forward at the appropriate time. 

 
6.5 Legal 

 

There are no specific legal considerations at this stage. 
 

6.6 Climate Change 
 
All proposed developments will support the sustainable use of the 

Page 19



  

sites.  
 

6.7 

 

Consultation 

 
As outlined in the report. 

 
6.8 
 

Risk Assessment 
 

Appropriate assessment will be made of each project within the 
plan. 

 
 

Mark Trillo 
Executive Director (Governance & Commissioning) and Monitoring Officer 

 

 
Web Links and 
Background Papers 

Contact details 

 Gareth Knapper - Service Development 
Officer & Robert Wilks 
Principal Officer (Leisure and Recreation) 

gareth.knapper@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk, 
robert.wilks@highpeak.gov.uk 
 

 
 
 

7 Play and Outdoor Sports Facilities – Investment and Delivery Plan 

 

7.1 Play and outdoor sports facilities are important assets in many of our parks 
and green spaces. They are key attractions that help children, young people 
and adults keep active, build confidence, gaining physical literacy and social 

skills.  
 

7.2 It is important that these facilities are provided, maintained and developed 
effectively and, to ensure that this happens, the proposed investment and 
delivery plan (Appendix 1) has been developed. The plan highlights a 

proposed programme of refurbishment or/and replacement of selected 
facilities over a 4 year rolling period.  

 
7.3 To develop the plan, quality assessments of existing Council owned play and 

outdoor sports facilities have been undertaken and the facilities which require 

improvements, the timeframe for when improvements should be undertaken, 
and a budget estimate for how much the improvements are likely to cost have 

been outlined. 
 
7.4 Should the plan be approved, delivery of the identified projects will be 

managed by the Council’s Leisure and Recreation Team. An annual review 
will take place where those projects that have been delivered will be removed 

from the plan and new projects will be brought into the cycle for delivery in 
future years. 

 

Page 20



  

7.5   The overall cost to deliver the first 4 years of this plan is estimated to be 
£320,000 and this amount would need adding to the medium term financial 
plan (MTFP) as a growth item, starting in 2023/24. The impact of this results in 

the additional revenue borrowing costs detailed in section 6.4 above. 
 

7.6 There is scope to offset these costs by utilising section 106 monies that have 
been secured from housing developments where improvements to play or 
outdoor sports facilities is required. Where section 106 monies have been 

received by the Council, budget estimates take this into account and the 
request for funds has been reduced accordingly.  

 
7.7 Where section 106 monies have been requested from housing developers, but 

not yet received, these have not been taken into account at this stage. 

However, as trigger points for these monies to be paid to the Council are 
achieved in the future, the amount of capital funds required can be reduced 

accordingly. 
 
7.8 It may be possible in some cases to secure external funding towards some 

projects and, by doing so, budgets could be adjusted down accordingly. As 
there are no guarantees external funding can be secured at this stage, full 

costs have been included accordingly. 
 
7.9 The District Council does not have the responsibility for refurbishing or 

replacing play areas and some outdoor sports facilities in Cheadle but, 
recognising the importance of these facilities to local residents, officers are 
working with Cheadle Town Council to develop an improvement plan for Tean 

Road and Churchill Road. This plan is expected to be completed during 2022 
and funding via a number of section 106 has already been identified to 

contribute towards delivery of any plan once trigger points are met within these 
agreements.  

 

7.10 A recent example of improved play facilities, where improvement works have 
been completed, is at Brough Park in Leek. As part of a wider improvement 

plan for the park, the old play area has been replaced for a new, destination 
standard facility which is more than three times the size of the existing one, 
which caters for much wider age range (0-14 years) and includes a variety of 

play equipment and a new multi-use games area (MUGA). 
 

 
 
 

 
 

Page 21



This page is intentionally left blank



Site name Description of equipment / facility Open Space Study rating 
2017 

Potential s106 Contributions Service Commissioning 
rating 2020/21

MTFP Requested Budget Anticipated year of 
delivery

Brough Park Play Area Old play area was small and aimed at the toddler age 
group only. New play area was delivered in 2021 taking 
up a new larger position and incorporating both toddler 
and junior age range play.

Included as part of 
HLF bid but will need 
to be addressed if this 
is not forthcoming.

None New play area installed 
in 2021.

N/A 2021

Brough Park MUGA Original MUGA installed on to one of five tennis courts 
in 2013.  New MUGA installed in a new position next to 
the new play area in 2021.                                                    

None New MUGA installed in 
2021.

N/A 2021

Brough Park Skate Park Fully refurbished in 2018/19 to a concreate skate park. 
Includes five floodlight columns. 

None N/A

Brough Park Tennis Courts (x2) Following improvements to the play and MUGA in 2021 
the two remaining tennis courts were fully refurbished in 
2022.

N/A None N/A 2022

Charnwood Close (Wallbridge Drive) Play 
Area

Site is located in the west of Leek. Only a swing unit on 
a small area of open space. Swings and surfacing 
refurbished in Spring 2017. Potential for more items to 
be installed.

None Question whether we 
would want to increase 
the play items at this 
location or not?

N/A

Cruso Street Play Area Small play area only. Located in the centre of Leek. 
Majority of the site was refurbished in 2010, so 
equipment in good condition.
Issues with nuisance to residents.

None Climber unit is older than 
the other equipment but 
not in bad condition. 

N/A

P
age 23



Glebeville Play Area Small play area and rough open space located in Leek 
south. Equipment is at least 15 years old but in general 
good condition.
Safety surface shrinkage was repaired in 2016, so in 
good condition. Also has a small kick about area and 
basketball hoop.
Fence was painted in 2016.

None Equipment is essentially 
sound but uninspiring 
and low play value. Very 
basic offering and a 
sterile environment. 
Could be conflict with 
residents though over 
any major improvement 
which might drive higher 
numbers of users to the 
site.

£70,000 2023

Haregate Hall Toddler play area located on the Haregate estate. Fully 
refurbished in 2017.

None N/A

Pickwood Rec Play Area Located in Leek east. Small fenced play area with cable-
way and basket swing externally positioned in the wider 
open space. Equipment in fenced area is old and in 
need of refurbishment.
Cableway and basket swing were installed in 2014 and 
2011 respectively so are in good condition.

Milltown Way development 
SMD/2020/0730 (25 units).                    
Off-site play for Pickwood Rec 
£39,040.80                                         
Paid at 25% occupancy

A partial refurbishment 
would be recommended 
within the next 4yrs. 
Some items are older 
than others such as the 
two climbing units and 
see-saw

£70,000 2024

The Waste Play Area Woodland site with some open space on the edge of 
Haregate estate. New timber play equipment install 
2017.

Not listed as a play 
area as equipment 
not installed at the 
time.

None N/A

Westwood Recreation Ground Play Area Village Green type site located in the middle of Leek 
West. Play area and general open space. Site was 
refurbished in 2010 so equipment in good condition. 
New rope pyramid installed in 2018.

None N/A

Woodcroft Open Space
Open space with a cable-way. New cableway installed 
in Spring 2017.

None N/A

Total 140000

Leek
Glebeville Play Area 2023 70,000
Pickwood Rec 2024 70,000*
Total 140,000

P
age 24



*external funds potentially available

P
age 25



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Site name Description of equipment / facility Open space study 
rating 2017 

Potential s106 
Contributions 

Service Commissioning rating 2020/21 MTFP Requested 
Budget

Anticipated year of 
delivery

Biddulph Valley Park Play area on a large park centrally located in 
Biddulph. Located near to the leisure centre. Site 
refurbished in 2010 so equipment generally in 
good condition.
Some issues around sporadic vandalism and anti-
social behaviour at this site.

None Recently suffered an arson attack 
which has destroyed the main 
climbing unit - due for replacement.  
Seems to be a mismatch of 
equipment ages but it would be good 
to look at the rest of the equipment 
in the next 4 years.

£70,000 2025

Brown Lees Play Area Important play area serves the Brown Lees area 
of Biddulph. Play area refurbished in 2011 so in 
good condition.

None N/A

Church Road Play Area Located on Church Road Playing Fields in 
Biddulph east this is an important play area which 
has suffered from vandalism and ASB. Site was 
redeveloped in 2016 as a result of persistent 
vandalism. New climbing unit installed and 
cable-way reinstated in 2020.

None Needs some repair/re-design work to 
sort out the timber sleepers within 
the play area. The play area within 
the fence could be enhanced to give 
more play opportunities and value to 
the lower ages - this would improve 
the play offer for this site. 
Furthermore the items for the junior 
ages which sit outside the fenced 
area and near the MUGA would 
benefit from the underfoot conditions 
being improved.

£60,000 2023

Church Road MUGA Installed in 2010. None. But listed in the 
LFFP and therefore 
could attract Football 
Foundation funding.

Generally sound although some of 
the fencing is now looking tired. 
Recently one of the upright supports 
required resecuring. Floodlights were 
never fully connected and thus have 
never been used.

£50,000 2024

The Paddock Play Area 
(Decommissioned)

Isolated position at the bottom of a bowl. * All 
equipment has been removed from this site 
due to the ASB issues.

N/A

Halls Road Play Area Key site for Biddulph, including new play area 
(2016), MUGA, tennis court, football pitches and 
fitness equipment. 

None N/A

Halls Road MUGA New MUGA installed in 2016 None N/A

Halls Road Tennis Courts 
(x2)

New tennis courts installed in 2016 None N/A

Hawthorn Grove Play 
Area

Items installed as part of development in 2007. 
Only adopted by the council in 2016 with £50,000 
commuted sum.  Equipment in reasonable 
condition and safety surface repaired by 
developer before adoption.

None Small residential play area offering 
limited play but essentially the items 
are all generally ok. Commuted sum 
from Taylor Whimpey (£50,300) in 
2016 for 10 yrs.

N/A

Hot Lane Recreation Play 
Area

Main site for Biddulph Moor. Toddler and junior 
play area. Site fully refurbished in 2017.

None N/A

Mill Hayes Skate Park Metal ramps skate park located next to the car 
park. Skate park is fenced. 

None N/A

Total £180,000

Biddulph
Church Road Play Area 2023 60,000
Church Road MUGA 2024 50,000*
Biddulph Valley Park 2025 70,000
Total 180,000

*external funds potentially available

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank



Site name Description of equipment / 
facility

Open space study rating 2017 Potential s106 contributions Service Commissioning rating 
2020/21

MTFP Requested Budget Anticipate
d year of 
delivery

Churchill Road 
Rec

Site is owned by SMDC but leased 
to Cheadle Town Council. Play 
equipment for toddlers and juniors. 
MUGA and football pitch also on 
the site. Toilet facilities are closed.  
Currently in talks with Town Council 
re the refurbishment/ 
redevelopment of this site.

Yes - £50k Tuners Pasture. Cecilly 
Mill development additionally has 
funds avilable for the site.

Desire from Cheadle Town 
Council to refurbish the play area 
using money from the s106 along 
with other improvements to the 
site.

Not applicable 2022/23

TotalP
age 29



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Site name Desrciption of equipment / facility Open space study rating 
2017

Potential s106 contributions Service Commissioning 
rating 2020/21

MTFP 
Requested 
Budget

Anticipated year of 
delivery

Bluestones Play 
Area

Small play area located on an estate located 
a few miles out of Leek. Site refurbished in 
2014 so equipment in good condition.
No sign.
Grass growing through safety surface needs 
removing and spraying.

None Not applicable

Total

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 33

Agenda Item 10
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 To approve the Minutes of the Previous Meetings.
	Draft Open Minutes 23 March 2022

	7 Work Programme.
	8 Play and Outdoor Sports Facilities Investment Plan.
	Appendix A 1 for SMDC Play Strategy_v1
	Leek Analysis Area 

	Appendix A 2 for SMDC Play Strategy_v1
	Biddulph Analysis Area 

	Appendix A 3 for SMDC Play Strategy_v1
	Cheadle Analysis Area 

	Appendix A 4 for SMDC Play Strategy_v1
	Rural sites


	10 To approve the exempt minutes from the previous meeting.

